[bookmark: _GoBack]
[image: ]







Essex County Council
Waste Disposal Authority



Procurement of a framework 
for the treatment, transfer and transport of bio-wastes


Market Engagement Exercise


February 2018



Essex County Council – Waste Disposal Authority
Market Engagement Questionnaire

Introduction

This questionnaire is part of a market engagement exercise for the treatment, transfer and transport of municipally collected bio-wastes by Essex County Council (“ECC”) on behalf of itself and Southend-on-Sea Borough Council (“SBC”), in their capacity as waste disposal authorities. 

It is intended for use by organisations who are interested in participating in a future procurement for the disposal of bio-waste. It is not intended for general public use.

To assist ECC in the development of its market approach and to ensure it secures best value when procuring its requirements for disposal of bio-waste, ECC is seeking, and would be grateful for, written responses to a number of questions set out in  Appendix 1 to this questionnaire. Please read the Project Brief below, before completing the questionnaire.

For queries about this questionnaire please email: essex.wastepartnership@essex.gov.uk 

The form should be completed and returned by email to: 

essex.wastepartnership@essex.gov.uk

by close of business on Wednesday 7th March 2018. 



Many thanks for your time and interest in this project.

Essex County Council 
February 2018











Project Brief


1. Market Engagement

ECC is currently developing a procurement opportunity in the form of a Bio-waste Framework Agreement (the “Framework Agreement”), and is seeking input from the market as to what might be the most attractive way of packaging and scoping the opportunity. The bio-waste services in question are the treatment, transfer and transport of municipally collected:

· Food waste
· Green (garden) waste
· Mixed food and green waste

Framework agreements are contracts in which a number of companies, having demonstrated that they can deliver the services required, are appointed to the framework and are then eligible to bid for the supply of services by way of mini-competitions. Mini-competition bids are (typically) evaluated on a cost basis and the delivery of the services is then implemented by ECC through time limited service orders. Appointment to a framework agreement does not in itself guarantee award of service orders.

Potential bidders will not be prejudiced by any response or failure to respond to this market engagement exercise. Potential bidders must also note that a response to this questionnaire does not guarantee an invitation to participate in this or any future procurement that ECC may conduct, nor that ECC will procure any such services or accept any proposals offered. Any procurement of the services by ECC will be carried out strictly in accordance with the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 meaning that potential bidders will need to express their interest in bidding for the Framework Agreement once the OJEU notice has been published. 

A copy of the official OJEU notice will be sent to any potential bidder who has submitted a completed questionnaire. The OJEU notice will provide instructions on how to register their organisation’s interest in the subsequent bio-waste tender. 

It is ECC’s intention to use the OJEU Open Procedure. The procurement of the Framework Agreement will commence in Spring 2018 and appointments to the framework will be made by Autumn 2018. Mini-competitions will follow and services will commence from April 2019. 




2. Confidentiality 

The Public Contracts Regulations 2015 enable contracting authorities to conduct market consultations with a view to preparing the procurement and informing potential bidders of their procurement plans and requirements.  The advice and information received from this questionnaire will be used in the planning and conduct of the future procurement procedure which is the subject of this questionnaire.  

Respondents should note that ECC is bound by the provisions of the Freedom of Information Act 2000 and the Environmental Information Regulations 2004 and therefore may be required to disclose information pursuant to such legislation.  For this reason, respondents may wish to clearly identify any data or information that they consider is confidential or commercially sensitive but should note that the final decision as to whether such information should be released is the decision of ECC.

3. Background

3.1 The Essex Waste Partnership

The Essex Waste Partnership is ECC and SBC working together with the Essex waste collection authorities (“WCAs”) which are the 12 Borough, City and District Councils in Essex. The parties work together on waste management issues to deliver long-term, value for money waste management solutions.

ECC has a statutory responsibility to arrange for the treatment of bio-wastes collected by the WCAs.

3.2 Scope of bio-waste arisings

The following table shows the indicative annual tonnages of bio-waste:

· As collected at the kerbside by the WCAs’ and passed to ECC for disposal;
· As taken by residents to the county recycling centres; and
· As collected at the kerbside by SBC.



	Bio-waste Arisings

	April 2016 - March 2017

	Authority
	Food Waste
(Tonnes)
	Green Waste
(Tonnes)
	Mixed Food and Green Waste

	Basildon Borough Council
	 
	1,511 
	18,171 

	Braintree District Council
	4,375
	11,503 
	 

	Brentwood District Council
	1,072
	4,199 
	 

	Castle Point District Council
	 
	145 
	7,533 

	Chelmsford District Council
	4,138
	16,508 
	 

	Colchester District Council
	3,099
	9,605 
	 

	Epping Forest District Council
	 
	 
	16,404 

	Harlow District Council
	3,091
	325 
	 

	Maldon District Council
	2,071
	
	 

	Rochford District Council
	 
	 
	12,717 

	Tendring District Council
	1,995
	1,919 
	 

	Uttlesford District Council
	2,910
	3,049 
	 

	Waste Collection Authority Total
	22,752 
	48,764 
	54,825 

	Southend on Sea
	4,433 
	 
	 

	Recycling Centres for Household Waste collections
	 
	26,108 
	 

	Total
	27,185 
	74.872 
	54,825 

	Notes:
1) Castle Point District Council began segregating their mixed food and green collections in April 2017. So far, the overall tonnage collected has not changed significantly and the separated food and green arisings are splitting out roughly 25% and 75% respectively. 
Note that ECC does not warrant that mixed food and green will constitute 25% food waste to 75% green waste. This is merely an approximation and there will clearly be very significant variations as the green waste fraction is influenced by the growing season.

	



The European Waste Codes for the bio-waste streams are shown in the table below.

	Description of waste types

	Bio-waste stream
	European Waste Code
	Description

	Food waste
	20 01 08
	Biodegradable kitchen and canteen wastes

	Green waste
	20 02 01
	Plant-derived wastes from household gardens and public park wastes. 

	Mixed food and green waste
	20 01 08
and
20 02 01
	A combination of food and green waste.




5. Bio-waste Framework opportunity

5.1 	ECC requires a framework of suppliers capable of providing all or part of the following services:

i. Receipt and treatment of separately collected food waste in accordance with all relevant legislation to produce a marketable end product which meets either PAS 100 or PAS 110 (dependant on treatment type) quality standard (or equivalent).

ii. Receipt and treatment of green garden waste in accordance with all relevant legislation to produce a marketable end product which meets the PAS 100 quality standard (or similar).

iii. Receipt and treatment of any combination of green garden waste and food waste in accordance with all relevant legislation to produce a marketable end product which meets either PAS 100 or PAS 110 (dependant on treatment type) quality standard (or equivalent).

iv. Receipt, bulk and transport of the bio-wastes under consideration to dedicated treatment plants/disposal points as directed by ECC or as provided by the bidder.

5.2	ECC welcomes solutions from:

i. UK Anaerobic Digestion, Open Windrow and In-Vessel Composting facilities operated in accordance with the relevant regulations and permissions.
ii. Commercial waste transfer station operators and hauliers with waste licences.
iii. Consortia that can offer combinations of the above solutions through sub-contracting arrangements but provide ECC with a single price for the solution.

5.3 	All material in 5.1 shall be delivered by either bulk haulage vehicles contracted to ECC or by the various refuse collection vehicles operated by the WCAs. Waste material will be delivered either loose or bagged depending on the collection methods employed by the WCAs.



6. Procurement Strategy

6.1 	Following a review of feedback gained from this market engagement exercise, ECC will devise a series of LOTs to be offered to the market under a new framework. Bidders will be required to indicate which LOTS they are bidding for when responding to any future tender.

6.2	It is intended that the Framework Agreement will last for four years, with a planned services commencement date of 1st April 2019.

6.3	ECC intends to appoint all bidders to its Framework Agreement who:

i. provide evidence of an existing treatment facility or transfer and transport process that is compliant with ECC’s specification of requirements; or
ii. who can demonstrate that they have a compliant treatment or waste transfer station facility that is nearing the operational stage; and
iii. who meet ECC’s supplier quality standards.

6.5 	Subsequently, ECC will undertake LOT specific mini-competitions, identifying the specific availability of waste by tonnage and duration, and request submissions of price for these specifics at that stage from members of the Framework.
.
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Appendix 1 – Questionnaire


Respondent Contact Details

Organisation:

Name:

Address:

Telephone:

Email:


Your Interest in the Procurement

1. Which of the requirements in paragraph 5 of the briefing document are of interest to your organisation?

	Para ref
	Requirements in brief
	Please indicate interest

	5.1.i.  
	Receipt and treatment of separately collected food waste in accordance with all relevant legislation to produce a marketable end product which meets either PAS 100 or PAS 110 (dependant on treatment type) quality standard (or equivalent).
	

	5.1.ii.
	Receipt and treatment of green garden waste in accordance with all relevant legislation to produce a marketable end product which meets the PAS 100 quality standard (or similar).
	


	5.1.iii.
	Receipt and treatment of any combination of green garden waste and food waste in accordance with all relevant legislation to produce a marketable end product which meets either PAS 100 or PAS 110 (dependant on treatment type) quality standard (or equivalent).
	

	5.1.iv.
	i. Receipt, bulk and transport of the bio-wastes under consideration to dedicated treatment plants/disposal points as directed by ECC or as provided by the bidder.
	



2. What is the nature of your likely solution(s)? e.g. Anaerobic Digestion, Open Windrow, In-Vessel Composting, waste transfer station, haulage.






3. Does any of the information contained in the Project Brief attached to this questionnaire dissuade you immediately from bidding for this project? If so, what aspects?





4. When assessing whether to bid for similar contracts put forward by other local authorities, what factors encourage you to submit a tender?




5. Does your company provide the full service or is part of the process sub-contracted? Please describe any sub-contracted elements.



	
6. How do you see Brexit impacting the commercial operations of your company?




Formation of LOTs and Service Orders

7. ECC wants to work with its suppliers to drive down the cost of disposal.  What could ECC offer that would enable your company to meet your demand and optimise your bid price;

i. guaranteed tonnage
ii. small volume LOTs
iii. large volume LOTs
iv. short term service orders
v. long term service orders
vi. a steady flow of feedstock
vii. other (please specify)




8. At the mini-competition stage, if tonnage bands were retained, what would your preferred banding increment be? i.e. how tailored would you prefer awards to be? e.g. less than 5,000 tonne bands, 5,000 tonne bands, 10,000 tonne bands, greater than 10,000 tonne bands, doesn’t matter?





9. Service Orders awarded following mini-competitions can be any length, between three months and the full four years of the Framework Agreement. What would you prefer? Eg, less than 6 months duration, 6 to 12 months, more than 12 months, doesn’t matter? 



10. Would your company be interested in bidding for tonnage via an online electronic auction? E-auctions offer bidders the opportunity to dynamically view prices submitted by competitors and respond in real time.

· If yes what length of service order would be preferred?
· If no, what are the barriers to using e-auctions for your company?



11. What lead time does your solution require? I.e. how long would you require between a mini-competition award and commencing services?



12. Does your organisation feel that the current Key Performance Indicators (provided at Appendix 2) are appropriate, or how could they be improved?



Current and previous suppliers


If you have been a successful supplier on any of ECC’s previous bio-waste frameworks please respond to the questions below (if No please go to question 16):

 
13. What aspects of the bidding process did your organisation find beneficial?



14. What aspects of the bidding process would you consider need improving or cause your organisation difficulties? (Please be aware that the council is governed by the Public Contract Regulation 2015 so parts of the process are legislated) 



15. Are there any aspects of the Terms & Conditions of previous bio-waste framework contracts which you would like ECC to review?  



Conclusion

16. Are there any ways of structuring the procurement, the LOTs or the service orders that would assist ECC in obtaining best value that have not been mentioned above?





17. Would you be interested in a session, hosted by ECC explaining how to submit a tender response?




18. 
Appendix 2 – current contract KPIs


	KPI
	Description
	Measurement
	Frequency
	Details

	1
	Facility operational as per Service Order?
	Number of hours/days per calendar month facility is unable to accept waste.
	Monthly
	Service deduction application - facility operationally closed and unavailable to accept waste in accordance with the Service Order. Where there is no pre-agreed contingency tipping arrangements being provided as an alternative by the Contractor.

Service deductions - first hour or part there of = £150 or 0.5% of monthly contract value for facility (whichever is greater).
- additional hours in the same day = £300 or 1% of monthly contract value for facility (whichever is the greater).
- each additional day or part there of = £3,000 or 5% of monthly contract value for facility whichever is the greater.
Exceptions - situations where facility closure or restricted inputs have been agreed in advance by the Authority. (Where an incident exceeds 1 week (7 days) 1b will apply).

	1b
	Facility operational as per Service Order?
	Unavailability:
- any single incident in excess of 1 week (7 days).
- 3 incidents over 24 hours in any period of 3 months (period commencing at the 1st of each calendar month).
	Monthly
	Service deduction application - facility operationally closed and unavailable to accept waste in accordance with the Service Order.
Unplanned unavailability:
- in excess of 1 week;
- for more than 3 separate occasions each exceeding 1 day within a 'rolling' 3 month period regardless of any pre-agreed contingency tipping arrangements being provided as an alternative or not.

Service deductions - per occasion = £10,000 or 8% of monthly contract value (whichever is the greater)
Exceptions - situations where facility closure or restricted inputs have been agreed in advance by the Authority.

	2
	Receive waste in all types of vehicles from WTS and WCAs
	Number of vehicles reported as turned away.
	Monthly
	Service deduction application - failure to accept an agreed Authorised Vehicle without cause.

Service deductions - per occasion - £1,000 or 2% of monthly contract value (whichever is the greater).

	3
	Conduct as a minimum, an annual report on the facility's compliance with the agreed quality standard as per the Specification for the end product.
	Records available, up to date and available for inspection and retained on site.
	Annually
	Service deduction application - Failure to keep accurate records relating to the output quality of all products (liquid or solid) including test results and certification.

Service deductions - Not able to provide documentation when required - £500 and further deductions of £500 for each working week when omission not rectified up to a maximum of £2,000 or 1% of monthly contract value (whichever is the greater) for any incident.

	4
	20 minute Approved Vehicle turn around time from arrival at weighbridge to departure from facility.
	Number of Approved Vehicles failing to achieve target turn around.
	Monthly as required
	Service deduction application - failure to meet 20 minute Approved Vehicle turn around time from arrival at weighbridge to departure from facility.

Service deductions - each Approved Vehicle exceeding the SLA Target time by 11 to 20 minutes = £100.
Each Approved Vehicle exceeding the SLA Target time by 21 to 30 minutes = £200.
Accumulated delays between 10 - 20 minutes within any month = £75 per 30 minutes.

	5
	Retain on site a copy of the annual weighbridge inspection/calibration certificate.
	Copy of certificate and any accompanying report available on site.
	As and when required.
	Service deduction application  - failure to make certificates available (eg weighbridge calibration, PAS 100/110 or equivalent, ABPR etc (list not exclusive).

Service deductions - Certificate not available on site = £1,000 per check.

	6
	All data to be supplied as per the Specification and in accordance with the Services Order within the stated timescales and within minimum 98% accuracy levels.
	Report on the submission of required data to the specified timescales and accuracy levels.
	Monthly
	Service deduction application - failure to provide data in compliance with the requirement detailed in the Service Order. Accuracy of the data supplied on initial receipt is less than 98%.

Service deductions - Timely data provision - for each working day delay after the specified deadline = £250 or 1% of the monthly contract value (whichever is the greater) up to maximum of £1,200 or 5% of monthly contract value.
Data Accuracy - For every 1% below the 98% tolerance = £250 or 1% of the monthly contract value (whichever is the greater) for each occasion up to maximum of £1,250 or 5% of monthly contract value.

	7
	Contractors staff and agents to respond to communications (telephone, email, text, letter, fax etc) as necessary.
	Timescale in which the Authority's communication was responded to/acted upon.
	Through contract meetings.
	Service deduction application - Failure to respond to communications within appropriate timescales and with adequate information appropriately to the urgency and importance of the enquiry.

Service deduction - Timely and appropriate communication - For each incident of inappropriate response to communication = £250 or 1% of the monthly contract value (whichever is the greater) up to a maximum of £1.250 or 5% of monthly contact value.

	8
	Not used
	Not used
	Not used
	Not used

	9
	Comply with all applicable legislation - environmental, planning, H&S etc.
	Timescale within which the enforcement authority required breach to be rectified.
	Monthly
	Service deduction application - For any breach of conditions relating to applicable legislation not rectified within the indicated timescales.

Service deduction  - Where breaches prevent the Contractor fulfilling Service Order then conditions in 1a or 1b will apply.

	10a
	Notification of any major incident or facility closure within a maximum of 1 hour of the incident occuring.
	Timescale in which the Authority was notified of an incident.
	Monthly
	Service deduction application  - Failure to notify (immediate verbal report and in writing within 1 hour) the Authority of a facility being closed or unavailable to accept waste.

Service deduction - Thereafter for each 15 minute time period = £250 or 1% of the monthly contract value (whichever is the greater) up to maximum of £1,250 or 5% of monthly contract value per incident.

	10b
	Notification of all Health & Safety incidents including details of the incident and copies of any reports sent to the HSE.
	Timescale in which the Authority was notified of an incident.
	Monthly as required
	Service deduction application - Notification of all RIDDOR Health & Safety accidents or incidents within 24 hours of becoming aware of the incident along with operational impact assessment for activities linked to the delivery of the Services.

Service deduction - Thereafter for each 24 hour time period = £250 or 1% of the monthly contract value (whichever is the greater) up to maximum of £1,250 or 5% of monthly contract value per incident.

	10c
	Notification of all PPC/WML incidents incuding details of the incident and copies of any reports sent to the Environment Agency.
	Timescale in which the Authority was notified of an incident.
	Monthly as required
	Service deduction application - Notification of all PCC/WML (Environmental Permit) related incidents resulting in pollution or other negative impact on the environment or enforcement action taken by the Environment Agency, within 24 hours of the incident, along with operational impact assessment for activities linked to the delivery of services.

Service deduction - Thereafter for each 24 hour time period = £250 or 1% of the monthly contract value (whichever is greater) up to maximum of £1,250 or 5% of monthly contract value per incident.

	10d
	Incident notification of Approved Vehicles and their crew not adhering to H&S/ facility regulations including details of the incident and all actions taken.
	Timescale in which the Authority was notified of an incident.
	Monthly as required
	Service deduction application - Notification of Approved Vehicles (including personnel on board) not complying with Facility Safety Rule (or equivalent) whilst on site within 24 hours.

Service deduction - Thereafter for each 24 hour time period = £250 or 1% of the monthly contract value (whichever is greater) up to maximum of £1,250 or 5% of monthly contract value per incident.

	11
	Full details of all Approved Vehicles arriving on site where the waste consignment is rejected or recoverable including the origins of the waste, reasons for classifying as rejected/recoverable and disposal/recycling route for contaminates
	Timescale in which the Authority was notified of intention to Reject/Recover Loads.
	Monthly
	Service deduction application - Notification to the Authority in line with timescales and procedures set out in the Waste Acceptance Criteria (Schedule 6).

Service deduction - per incident where notification occurred outside the timescale or the procedures indicated in Schedule 6 = £250 or 1% of the monthly contract value (whichever is greater) up to maximum of £1,250 or 5% of monthly contract value.

	12
	Prevent the build up of mud or other residues on Approved Vehicles. Where build up of such residues occur, facilities must remove such residues prior to the Approved Vehicle(s) leaving the facility.
	Incident reports on residue on approved vehicles and highways.
	Monthly
	Service deduction application - Failure to take sufficient and timely actions to remove the build up of mud or other residues on vehicles prior to their leaving the facility and/or failure to prevent excessive deposit of material on the highway by all Approved Vehicles leaving the facility.

Service deduction - Per incident recorded on the contract monitoring report, or reported and supported by evidence, from a 3rd party = £250.

	13
	Damage limitation to Approved Vehicles
	 
	 
	Service deduction application - Failure to maintain facility access and surfaces so as to prevent damage to Approved Vehicles.

Service deduction - Per incident recorded on the contract monitoring report, or reported and supported by evidence, from 3rd party = £250.

	14
	Notification to any potential claim to either the Contractor, the Authority or a third party engaged in delivering the Services under the Services Order within 24 hours of the incident occurring.
	Timescale in which the Authority was notified of potential claim.
	As required
	Service deduction application - Failure to provide the Authority with notice of the incident(s) within the agreed timescale.

Service deduction - Per incident recorded on the contract monitoring report, or reported and supported by evidence, from a third party = £250.

	15
	All claims for damages to be resolved within 90 days.
	Information purposes only
	Monthly
	Service deduction application - Information Purposes only.
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